If you are reading this electronically, the Council has saved £0.28 on printing. For
more information on the Mod.gov paperless app, contact Democratic Services

Merton Council

Merantun Development Limited Sub-
Committee Special meeting Agenda

Membership
Councillors:

Mark Allison (Chair)
Tobin Byers
Martin Whelton

Date: Monday 21 December 2020
Time: 7.15 pm

Venue: This will be a virtual meeting and therefore not held in a physical
location, in accordance with s78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020

This is a public meeting and can be viewed by following this link
https://www.youtube.com/user/MertonCouncil.

Electronic agendas, reports and minutes

Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be found on our
website. To access this, click https://www.merton.gov.uk/council-and-local-democracy
and search for the relevant committee and meeting date.

Agendas can also be viewed on the Mod.gov paperless app for iPads, Android and
Windows devices.

For more information about the agenda please contact
democratic.services@merton.gov.uk or telephone 020 8545 3616.

All Press contacts: communications@merton.gov.uk 020 8545 3181


https://www.youtube.com/user/MertonCouncil

Merantun Development Limited Sub-Committee
Special meeting Agenda

21 December 2020

1

Apologies for absence
Declarations of pecuniary interest
Minutes of the previous meeting 1-2

Merantun Development Ltd: Company Progress Report 3-8

Note on declarations of interest

Members are advised to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered at
the meeting. If a pecuniary interest is declared they should withdraw from the meeting room during
the whole of the consideration of that mater and must not participate in any vote on that matter. For
further advice please speak with the Managing Director, South London Legal Partnership.



Agenda Iltem 3

MERANTUN DEVELOPMENT LIMITED SUB-COMMITTEE
12 OCTOBER 2020

(7.57 pm - 8.03 pm)

PRESENT Councillors Stephen Alambritis (in the Chair), Mark Allison and
Martin Whelton

Ged Curran (Chief Executive), Caroline Holland (Director of
Corporate Services), Chris Lee (Director of Environment and
Regeneration), Louise Round (Managing Director, South London
Legal Partnership and Monitoring Officer), James McGinlay
(Assistant Director for Sustainable Communities) and Amy
Dumitrescu (Democratic Services Officer)

ALSO PRESENT Councillor Daniel Holden

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

There were no apologies for absence.

2 DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY INTEREST (Agenda ltem 2)
There were no declarations of interest.

3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda Item 3)

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2020 were agreed as a
correct record.

4 MERANTUN DEVELOPMENT LTD: COMPANY PROGRESS REPORT
(Agenda Item 4)

The Director of Environment and Regeneration presented the report which updated
on progress since the last meeting. The approval of the planning permissions for the
four sites the company was seeking to develop was a significant milestone and
provided an opportunity to review the business plan. The conclusion of the
independent review of the business plan would be completed by the end of October
and would be brought back to the Sub-Committee at the earliest opportunity. A
number of factors were significant in the review, including the Council’s own financial
position as a result of the covid-19 pandemic, the impact the pandemic had on the
housing and rental markets and Brexit.

The Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Housing and Transport thanked the officers
involved in their work in obtaining planning permission for the four sites, which would
have a positive impact and provide much needed housing.

The Cabinet Member for Finance echoed those comments and welcomed the review
of the business plan in light of the external factors.

1

All minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the cgommittee/panel. To find out the date of the next
meeting please check the calendar of events at your 6@ bdary or online at www.merton.gov.uk/committee.



http://www.merton.gov.uk/committee

The Chair welcomed the granting of planning permission and the progress made to
date.

RESOLVED

1. That the progress of Merantun Development Limited (MDL) for the delivery of
their new build housing programme be noted.

2.  The forthcoming key decision point on the delivery of MDL’s business plan be
noted.

3. The year to date expenditure incurred by the Company be noted.

2

All minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the gommittee/panel. To find out the date of the next
meeting please check the calendar of events at yotir @EHPlistary or online at www.merton.gov.uk/committee.



http://www.merton.gov.uk/committee

Agenda Item 4

Merantun Development Limited Sub-Committee

21 December 2020
Wards: Cricket Green, Figges Marsh, Ravensbury

Merantun Development Ltd: Company Progress Report

Lead officer: Chris Lee, Director of Environment and Regeneration

Lead member: Councillor Mark Allison, Leader of the Council

Councillor Martin Whelton, Cabinet Member of Housing,
Regeneration and the Climate Emergency

Councillor Tobin Byers, Cabinet Member for Finance
Contact officer: Chris Lee, Director of Environment and Regeneration

Recommendations:

A. To note the decision of the Merantun Development Ltd (MDL) Board that the
business case is no longer viable and not to proceed with the development of

sites.
B. Note that LBM owned land will not be transferred to MDL.
C. Note that the business case for the development of Private Rented Sector

housing at the scale set out in MDL'’s business plan is no longer viable and to
commence the process for closing down the company.

D. The Sub-Committee agrees in principle to wind up the company and to
authorise the Shareholder Representative (Chris Lee, Director of Environment
and Regeneration), in consultation with the Chair of the MDL Sub-Committee,
the s151 officer and Monitoring officer, to agree the process to be followed with
regards winding up the company and act on behalf of the Shareholder with
regards any resolutions that may be required.

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Shareholder Sub-Committee on the
outcome of the review of Merantun Development Limited’s business plan and
board decisions to halt development of sites at Farm Road, Canons Place, EIm
Nursery and Raleigh Gardens and the review of MDL’s business plan.

1.2 Merantun Development Ltd was incorporated to deliver a mix of private rent
and affordable housing on small sites that would contribute towards Merton’s
housing targets and generate a revenue return to the Council’s general fund.

1.3  The original Business Plan anticipated that there may be a need to exit or
‘jump off’ at various points depending upon market conditions and the financial
outlook of the Council. MDL now believe that one of those points has been
reached

1.4 A number of factors have impacted on the original business plan such as
increases in costs of construction, costs of borrowing, Covid-19 and Brexit

Page 3
1



1.5

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

impacts leading to a softening in the housing market. Collectively, these
impacts mean that the business case to deliver private rented sector homes as
set out in MDL'’s business plan is no longer viable. This alongside the financial
challenges facing all Local Authorities as a consequence of Covid and other
matters means that the appetite for risk is reduced.

The Board of MDL has approved the ‘jump of point’ — receipt of planning
approval — to not progress the development further and, as a consequence,
determine that the closure of the company should be undertaken.

DETAILS

Good progress was made in the preparation of the development of MDL'’s first
four sites; successfully securing planning permission in July 2020.

External factors, many as a consequence of Covid-19, are having an impact
on the economy and the housing market. MDL as a matter of course,
undertook a review of its business plan following the successful granting of
planning approval.

MDL’s business plan recognised that there would be a number of main
decision points as to whether it should progress from design, development and
planning to construction tendering and then to construction and letting.

The company reached a decision point and reviewed its income and cost
projections, particularly in light of COVID 19, and the ensuing macro-economic
risks. Following on from the Sub-Committee report of 12t October; MDL’s
board in dialogue with Merton Council as shareholder and funder undertook a
review of Merantun’s business plan and determined that the project is no
longer viable.

It is important that the Merantun Sub-Committee recognises that the state of
the housing market is currently very fluid and challenging and that in the
business plan review one of the key ‘jump off points’ was considered by MDL.
The returns to MDL no longer meet the Company business plan objectives and
that the purpose in the short to medium term was no longer viable. In dialogue
with the Council as shareholder and funder, it has been proposed that the
Company should be voluntarily wound up.

Covid-19 has also had an impact on the Council’s finances and the Council’s
appetite for risk and investment has diminished when considered alongside the
review of the MDL business case.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

Whilst the Merantun Board and Shareholder representative have
recommended closing down the company and its activities the alternative
options included:

Develop 3 sites for full market sale (High risk in the current housing market
and requires significant capital outlay)

LBM sell all sites with planning permission for maximum capital receipt;
transfer of the four sites to MDL would only have been undertaken had there
been a viable business plan after the receipt of planning permission. As the

Page 4
2



5.2

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

sites are not being transferred it will be for the council to dispose of the sites
with the benefit of planning permission.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED
None for the purposes of this report.

TIMETABLE

The timetable to conclude the Company’s business will be determined by the
process that is followed and requirements of Companies House. Some time
will be needed to conclude the planning s106 agreements and reconcile any
outstanding invoices for creditors.

The timetable will be reported to the Council’s Shareholder Representative.

FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS

The following tables highlight the financial implications of the proposal for LBM
to borrow to lend to MDL to facilitate the construction of homes to generate a
financial return to the Council.

The original business case contained a number of assumptions for financial
return which, in light of emerging events, have now significantly and adversely
moved. This has led both the MDL Board and Council Officers to conclude that
the scheme is no longer financially viable for both parties and that the
opportunity to ‘jump off as included in the original business case should be
enacted

The tables highlight the movements in the key modelling assumptions from the
original business case to the latest projections. It can clearly be seen that the
costs have increased and the potential return to the Council significantly
reduced.

Members will also note that under present circumstances the Company will not
be in a position to fully meet its interest payments until 2039/40. The loan from
the Council will not be repaid until 2049/50. It should be noted that no loan has
been made, but if a loan was to be made at this point in time it would not be
repaid until 2049/50. This contrasts to the modelling done in 2017 where the
loan would have been paid by 2039/40.

This, together with the significantly reduced return on investment (6.48%
reduced to 2.94%) over a 30 year period, leads to the conclusion that this
project represents too high a risk for it to remain a viable proposition.

In addition to the above the experience of Croydon Council and the problems it
has with its Housing Company, together with the restrictions Central
Government are placing on Councils to prevent ‘speculative investments’, will
act as a deterrent to investments of this nature going forward.

Page 5
3



6.7

6.8

Key Modelling Assumptions (2017 vs 2020 Models)

Finally, the Council’s current budget constraints, due in some part to Covid,
has significantly reduced the risk appetite for such investments.

Assumptions APR 2017 JUL 2020 Change %, change
Frivate 2 10 8 400%
Affordable 20 0 (20) (100%)
PRS 53 62 9 17%
Commercial units (trading space) 2 0 (2) (100%)
Total units i7 72 (5) (6%)
Unit sale proceeds 5,953 5,253 (700) (12%)
Developm ent costs 18,383 19,470 1,086 6%
HP1 (% p.a.) 4.50% 2.00% (3%) (56%)
Rent (% p.a.) 4.30% 4.30% 0% 0%
Interest rates:

PWLB loan to GF interest rate 2.76% 3.76% (1%) (36%)
GF loan to WOC margin 3.74% 3.74% 0% 0%
Borrowlng rate 6.50% 7.50% (1%) (15%)
Modelling results APR 2017 JUL2020 Change %, change
PWLB draw dow n 16,278 19,426 (3,148) (19%)
PWLB loan retirement 31-Mar-38 31-Mar-46

Loan to WOC 13,022 15,541 (2,519) (19%)
Cash equity in WOC 3.256 3.885 (630) (19%)
Land equity in WOC 8.190 4,970 3,220 39%
WOC loan retirement 31-Mar-42 31-Mar-50

Cum ulative |&E Im pact (project end) 67.451 31,852  (35,600) (53%)
Currulative I&Eimpact (year 5) 1.214 1,665 452 37%
Equity IRR (cash and land) 6.48% 294%  (35%) (55%)
Interest cover (mex in year shortfall) (286) (636) (350) 122%

Page 6
4




6.9

2020 Model Cash-flows (operational less annuity loan repayments)

Net Operational Cash Flow, £000

1,200

1,000

(200)

Net Ops CF, £000

800
600
400

200

(400)

(600)

(800)

(1,000)

6.10

6.11

7.2

7.3

M =T B & N~ 0  © = & o = U O ™~ 0 QO © = & 0 = 1 O~ 00 O O

N SN N SN SN NN SN N o N M N M M <t =t = = = = < = = = LN

T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T e T T T T

o I 2 T S ™ o T = ) o = < I = R e T I o I o I~ S ¥ I o T S = = R R e Y o I o I ™ o LT = R S+ = I = 3

N N oSN NN MmN NN N Mo N S S S S T T T
'he Company will determine any remaining liabilities and reconcile

outstanding payments and invoiced as part of the closure process.

Should Members agree to the winding up then officers will ensure the final
accounts reflect this and liaise with the Company’s external auditors. We will
also need to reflect any losses resulting from winding the Company up into the
Council’s accounts.

LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS

Under the Shareholder Agreement, it is a reserved matter (Reserved matter 8)
that it is for the council as shareholder to make the decision with regards
passing any resolution for winding up or presenting any petition for its
administration (unless it has become insolvent).

If the Council as shareholder decides to wind up the company, the process by
which this is done will be dependent on the assets and liabilities the company
holds. If the company has no assets or liabilities, then a voluntary strike off
would be available and this would not require the instruction of a liquidator.
This process is relatively simple and could be commenced on the Shareholder
passing a resolution to institute a process leading to the winding up of the
company. If the Company does have assets and is solvent, then the process to
be followed would be a member’s voluntary liquidation, which is a longer
process and involves the appointment of a liquidator.

With regards recommendation D, S101 of the Local Government Act 1972
permits the sub-committee to authorise an officer to act on its behalf in relation

Page 7
5



10.
10.1

11.

12.

to the Reserved Matters contained in the Shareholders Agreement including
the making of resolutions in relation to the winding up of the company.

HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION
IMPLICATIONS

None for the purposes of this report.

CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS
None for the purposes of this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
None for the purpose of this report.

APPENDICES
None

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

Page 8
6



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Merantun Development Ltd: Company Progress Report

